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January 9, 2001

Ms. Kathleen Zellner

Kathleen T. Zellner & Associates, P. C.
1717 North Naper Blvd., Suite. 203
Naperville, Illinois 60563

FAX: [630] 955-1111

Re: Wardell and Reynolds v. Pamela Fish and the City of Chicago
Court No. 98 C 8002 and 99 C 1856
Our File No. 00-675

Review of the Testimony of Pamela Fish

Dear Ms. Zellner:

We have completed a review of court transcripts and supporting
documents in several cases in which there was significant analytical work and
expert testimony by Pamela Fish during her tenure as a criminalist in the
Chicago, Illinois Police Department Crime Laboratory. In many of these cases,
Ms. Fish misrepresents the scientific significance of her findings either
directly or by omission. The nature of these errors are such that a reasonable
investigator, attorney, or fact finder would be misled concerning the ability of
her work to either include or exclude relevant individuals as potential
sources of biological evidence. A synopsis of each reviewed case is described

below.
Illinois v, Willi

In Illinois v. Willis, Fish conducted an ABO typing analysis on an
essentially neat semen stain from a toilet paper wrapper. In her laboratory
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report concerning this analysis, Fish characterized the analysis of the semen
evidence as “inconclusive”. In fact, her findings revealed that the semen
source was most likely an A secretor based on the analysis of two semen
stained areas from the toilet wrapper. Willis was determined tobe a B
secretor: Fish did not conduct an ABO typing analysis on the victim’s [Karen
Eady] blood or saliva. At trial Fish claimed that her ABO analysis of the
semen stains from the toilet paper wrapper were inconclusive because of
erroneous results from unstained portions of the toilet paper wrapper. Her
notes of this analysis do not support this contention; nor is there any

~ indication that she attempted to repeat her analysis in 11ght of the fact that she
had discovered an ABO blood type [A] that could not have been contributed

by Willis.

Willis was ultimately exonerated by a DNA analysis that
simultaneously inculpated convicted rapist Dennis McGruder.

Illinois v. Larry Ollins, Calvin Ollins, and Omar Saunders

In the case of Ollins et al., Larry Ollins, Calvin Ollins, and Omar
Saunders were separately tried and convicted of the rape and murder of -
- - was killed during an alleged takeover of her vehicle.
Marcellius Bradford, an alleged co-conspirator in this crime, testified that he,
Larry Ollins, Calvin Ollins, and Saunders were present when Larry and

Calvin raped -

As is revealed in her laboratory reports dated October 30, 1986 and
October 20, 1987, Fish determined thathwas an ABO type O non
secretor with PGM type 2-1+ [2 minus and 1+]. Fish found semen to be
present on the -vaginal swab. Her examination of the vaginal swab
revealed the ABO H blood group substance which must originate from an O
secretor [assuming a correct ABO testing process]. She also found a PGM
typing mixture containing PGM alleles 2-, 1+, and 1-. Since the victim, -
-is a non secretor, the H ABO blood group substance must originate
from an ABO type O secretor semen source. The only PGM trait which could
not erigi-nate- from [ is the PGM allele 1-. From this analysis Fish’s
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findings are compatible with a single semen source who is an ABO type O
secretor with PGM type 1-1- or 1+1- or 2-1-.

Fish determined that Larry Ollins was a non secretor with PGM type
1+1-. She determined that Calvin Ollins was a non secretor with PGM type
1+1+. She determined that Omar Saunders was a non secretor with PGM type
2+2+. She also determined that Marcellius Bradford was a non secretor with

PGM type 2-1+. Ngne of these 1nd1v1dga!§ could ggcount for the finding of

ab. Furthermore,

‘the only individual who possesses a PGM allele that must be from the semen
source is Larry Ollins whose PGM type is 1+1-; however Larry Ollins could
not be the source of the semen because as a non secretor he could not produce
the H ABO blood group substance. Therefore, in order to account for Fish’s
findings another unknown male must be responsible for at least some of the
semen found on the -vaginal swab. In her laboratory reports and in
her trial testimony Fish failed to state that her findings eliminated Larry and
Calvin Ollins, Sanders, and Bradford unless there was another semen source

who was an ABO type O secretor.

ish Testimony in the Trial of 1i

On direct examination in the trial of Larry Ollins, Fish testified she
generally cannot, and in this case was unable to, determine whether or not
there was more than one semen donor. [TT639, In 11-21] However, when she
was asked what she determined about the vaginal swab results compared to
Larry Ollins and Calvin Ollins she responded merely that "the PGM results
were consistent with the types, PGM type I got on the vaginal swab" [TT640, In
2-7]. This response completely ignored the ABO test findings from the
vaginal swab that are not compatible with Larry and Calvin Ollins. This
testimony also failed to consider the normally expected PGM contribution

from- herself.

On cross examination, Fish revealed the presence of H blood group
substance on the vaginal swab from a secretor semen donor, and she admitted
that Larry Ollins could not be the source of this genetic trait. Then defense

counsel asked the f'oll'owin_g:
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Q. Itis entirely consistent with all your testing that someone other
than Larry Ollins, without Larry Ollins, deposited semen in Lori
Roscetti is it not?

A. Nosiritis not. [TT 654-655]

The only possible response was "Yes." AnO secretor individual must be the
source of the H blood group substance and a single semen source, or any
number of persons other than Larry Ollins in combination with an O secretor
~ could account for the results Fish generated from her testing. The response by
Fish asserts a definitive association of Larry Ollins to the -vaginal
swab, which is not possible.

On redirect there was the following exchange:

Q. Counsel one time referred to the fact that the semen had to be
deposited by someone other than Larry Ollins, but in fact the semen

had to be deposited by Larry Ollins plus at least one other person, is that

correct?” [emphasis added]

A. That's correct. [TT 665 - 666]

When it was clear that Larry Ollins was eliminated as a potential
semen source under the prosecution'’s theory of this case, Fish's
representation of her data in this fashion can be viewed only as scientific
fraud. Even if Fish’s findings were different from her actual findings such
that they reflected semen from a non secretor with Larry Ollins’s PGM type of
1+1-, it is scientifically insupportable to claim that Larry Ollins is the only
person who could produce semen with these genetic characteristics.

ish Testi i Trial of Calvin OIlli

In the Calvin Ollins trial Fish testified on direct examination that "the
PGM type of Calvin Ollins was consistent with the PGM type that I received
on that vaginal swab" [TT 1429]. When asked by the prosecutor "And what
conclusion did you come to with regard to the semen that you found on the
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vaginal swab and Calvin Ollins?" Fish responded, "I came to the conclusion
that the semen present on that Vaginal swab could have come from Calvin

Ollins" [TT 1429].

Calvin Ollins is neither a secretor nor does he possess the requisite
PGM 1- allele to account for Fish's findings. Neither he nor Larry nor Omar
Saunders in any combination of these individuals can account for Fish's
findings from the vaginal swab. As in Larry Ollins’s trial, the fact that at least
some of the semen must originate from a secretor was completely avoided on
~ direct examination. It was also ignored that the PGM allele 1+ that Fish
attributed to Calvin Ollins in her testimony could have simply originated
from the female victim herself.

As for the presence of semen from more than one source, the
prosecutor asked Fish if it was possible to determine whether one was dealing
with one or more semen sources in a stain, to which Fish replied "No, sir,
you cannot" [T1426]. This is false testimony. It was and is, in fact, possible to
make such a determination. Whether or not more than one semen source
can be determined depends on the test results. A PGM test result that reveals
three PGM alleles which could not originate from a female victim
demonstrates the presence of at least two semen sources.

On cross examination, Fish testified that she could not reach a
conclusion as to whether the semen donor on the vaginal swab was a secretor
or not [TT 1434 - 1435]. Inlight of her testimony-in Larry Ollins' trial, this
testimony is false. Later, Fish again denied that she was even capable of
determining whether or not seminal fluid originates from a secretor or non
secretor [TT 1437]. This too was false testimony. When Fish was forced to
admit there was semen from a secretor on the hvag’mal swab, that she
knew could not have been deposited by any of the four defendants, she cast
doubt on this finding by undermining the forensic utility and reliability of
this genetic trait [secretor status]. The fact that she relied on the secretor
system as a reliable genetic trait will be revealed in Wright, Adams, and

Wardell below.
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Fish Testi in the Trial of Omar Saund

Like her direct testimony in the trials of the Ollins brothers, in her
direct testimony in the Saunders trial there was no mention of the ABO
testing that revealed semen from an O secretor on the vaginal swab. There
was no testimony that the PGM 2- and 1+ traits could all have originated
from the victim, nor did Fish reveal that all four male suspects were
determined by her to be ABO non secretors who could not produce the H
~antigen she detected from victim’s vaginalswab.

The prosecutor again invoked the potential for a mixture of semen
from two males by the phrasing of his questions to Fish. Fish responded "the
markers I obtained on the swab were consistent with the PGM markers from
Calvin Ollins and Larry Ollins" and that she "can conclude that it is possible
that Calvin Ollins' and Larry Ollins' semen may be present on that vaginal
swab" [TT 117 -118]. These statements misrepresented what Fish already
knew about the H blood group substance from the vaginal swab because
neither Larry nor Calvin Ollins could have contributed the ABO H antigen.
This testimony also misrepresented what the vaginal swab PGM results were
capable of proving -- that only the PGM 1- trait was foreign to the female and,
therefore, attributable to the semen source or sources.

Fish "excluded positively" Omar Saunders as possibly contributing
semen to the Roscetti vaginal swab, then included Bradford "as an individual
who could have contributed his genetic markers" and Larry Ollins was "also
included in the group of people who contributed to the genetic markers on
that vaginal swab" and Calvin Ollins was included "in a group of people that
could have been the donor of that semen" [TT 127]. Here Fish lumped three
of the four defendants together as possible contributors to the vaginal
swab knowing full well there was no way any of them alone or in any
combination could account for her findings. Even though Fish correctly
eliminated Saunders as a possible source of the genetic traits attributable to
the semen on the -vaginal swab, given that the State's theory required
the presence of semen from at least two males, even Saunders cannot be
eliminated as a potential contributor to the vaginal swab specimen.
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Finally, Fish was asked if she did "any further testing of the vaginal
swab and the blood workup of the four individuals" to which she responded
"There was no further testing for me to do on that vaginal swab so therefore I
ended my testing” [TT 130]. This was false testimony in two different ways.
First, in the Saunders trial Fish never mentioned during her testimony on
either direct or cross examination that she had conducted ABO typing on the
victim’s vaginal swab and found the H antigen which could not have
originated from any of the “four individuals.” Nor did she mention that the

" kfour individual suspects had been determined to be non secretors.

Secondly, it was a common practice for Fish to conduct peptidase A
typing on sexual assault evidence at the Chicago Police Department
Laboratory. This enzyme genetic marker is useful for distinguishing between
members of the Black population and is present in semen at high levels. Fish
did not conduct such an analysis on the evidence from -

Illinois v. Wardell; Illinois v. Reynolds
Illinois v. Wright; Illinois v. Adams
Illinois v. Torry

In Wardell, Reynolds, Wright, Adams, and Torry Fish attempted to
develop genetic information from semen alleged to be present on vaginal
swabs collected from the complaining victims in each case. Just as in Ollins et
al , only the detected genetic traits that are foreign to the female victim
provide information about potential semen sources!. In each of these cases,
Fish misrepresented or erred in drawing conclusions relevant to potential
semen sources. Some of these cases yielded identical data, yet Fish offered
different opinions -- and always she offered the opinion most damaging to
the defendant. In each of these cases, Fish relied heavily on the secretor trait
that she attempted to undermine or ignored in the Ollins et al case.

1 The only exception to this restriction in interpreting results from commingled body fluids such
as vaginal fluid and semen occurs when there is a quantitative showing of the presence of semen
at a concentration (ca 1:100 or greater) from which one would expect to be able to detect genetic
traits from a secretor semen source. Absent such a showing, no genetic information in regard to
the semen source can be inferred from data that is entirely compatible with the female.

o

7
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In Wardell and Reynolds, Wright, and Adams all of the genetic data
developed as a result of Fish’s testing was compatible with the female victim.
Thus, no information concerning potential semen sources was obtained by
her analysis. Therefore no male in the population could be eliminated as a
possible semen source. Yet in each of these cases, Fish inappropriately
narrowed the population of potential semen sources to a subset of the
population that always included a defendant.

The Reynolds & Wardell C
In Reynolds & Wardell, Fish detected A and H blood group substances
from the vaginal swab preparation. The source of the swab,F
was determined to be an A secretor, which means her vaginal fluid can
account for all of Fish's findings from the vaginal swab preparation. Thus, no

information concerning potential semen sources was obtained and none of
the population could be eliminated as a possible semen source.

Fish testified that the vaginal swab contained a contribution from an A
individual and an O individual [TT 872] and used this data to erroneously
eliminate Billy Wardell, a B secretor, as a possible semen source and to
include Donald Reynolds, an O secretor, "in 'the group' that could have
deposited semen on that swab" [TT 875].

Even if Fish could have narrowed the population somehow, she failed
to give this narrowing any meaning by not defining the subset of potential
semen sources or their frequency of occurrence in the population. For
example, Fish eliminated Wardell as a potential semen source apparently
because she failed to detect the ABO B blood group substance and she had
determined that Wardell was an ABO type B secretor. This conclusionisonly
correct if she also demonstrated that the semen concentration in her typing
extract was sufficiently high that she would always detect the ABO antigens
from a secretor. This quantitative assessment, however, was not a practice
employed by Fish. Even assuming that the semen concentrations were
sufficiently great, the semen source could be from an ABO non secretor [20%],
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ABO type A secretor [32%], or ABO type O secretor [36%]% . Thus, 88% of the
population are potential semen sources based on the Fish anal_ysis. Fish failed

to provide this information in her testimony.

On cross examination defense counsel elicited from Fish a frequency

for type O in the general population, this "group" was never clearly

statistically defined, which was essential to understanding the significance of
Fish's findings [TT 876]. Fish could not be referring to the general population
as 'the group’ because of the elimination of a group of people that included
Wardell e AL S L

Both Wardell and Reynolds were subsequently eliminated as potential
semen sources in this case through post-conviction DNA analysis.

The Adams Case

In Adams, Fish was confronted with the exact same set of data as in the
Wardell case. In Adams, Fish detected A and H blood group substances from
the_vaginal swab. She also determined that the female
victim was an ABQ tvpe A secretor. Since nothing foreign to the victim was
detected in theﬁ vaginal swabs, the semen source could be a non
secretor or a secretor of any ABO type. Thus, no one could be eliminated as a
potential semen source based on the Fish analysis. |

Fish determined that Eddie Adams was an ABO non secretor. Fish
then inappropriately eliminated all of the population as potential semen

sources except for non secretors, and she testified that only 20% of the

population (rather than 100%) are potential semen sources. In Wardell, Fish
included secretors (Re_ynolds was an O secretor) using the exact same test '
results as in Adams. These two cases clearly illustrate a pattern of

misrepresentation in Fish's casework.

2 This ABO frequency data is for the Caucasian population. The frequency date for tlie Black
population is ABO non secretors [20%], ABO A secretors [19%], ABO O secretors [40%] The total
for the Black population is 79%. .
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Even the Court understood that Fish had found nothing attributable to
the semen on the Finner vaginal swab, as is revealed b_.y the followin_g
exchange between the judge and Fish [TT 273 lines 2-20]:

Q: So, the reason that you are saying that the semen that was found is
consistent with that of the Defendant is because what you found
was you did not find anything really, right?

A. Well, what I found was the semen could not have come from a B
secretor because then on the vaginal swab, I would have picked up
~A (sic) and H. It could not have come from an AB secretor. I would - -
have picked up that B. '

Q. How about from an A non secretor or B non secretor, or O non
secretor or AB non secretor?

A. That's correct, all of them.

Q. What would be the percentage of any of that whole group of non
secretors?

A. Twenty percent of the population are non secretors.

Q. So, what we are talking about it is consistent with twenty percent of
the population?

A. Correct.

Rather than telling the Court in direct response to the Court’s question
that, in fact, she had found nothing in her analysis that could be attributed to
the semen source, Fish went on to claim that because she did not detect the
“B” antigen, she could eliminate B secretors and AB secretors. This claim
could only be supported if Fish had conducted quantitative estimates of the
semen levels in the extracts employed for the ABO typing analyses. There is
no indication that such quantitative estimates were made by Fish is this case
or in any other case in her laboratory. Thus, Fish could not eliminate A
secretors, B secretors, O secretors, or AB secretors.

Even if Fish had conducted quantitative analyses of the semen

concentrations in the extracts employed in the ABO analysis and even if those
estimates proved that the semen concentration was sufficiently concentrated

10
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such that the ABO antigens from a secretor would always be detected, her
findings would only eliminate B and AB secretors as potential semen sources.
B and AB secretors constitute only 12% of the Black population; that is, 88% of
the Black population, like the defendant, would not be excluded as potential
semen sources based on this evidence.

In further response to the court’s inquiry, Fish stated that all non
secretors are potential semen sources and that non secretors constitute 20% of
the population. While this answer is correct with regard to the frequency of
* non secretors, it ‘mlsrepresents the full constellation of the populatlon who,
like the defendant, would not be eliminated as a semen source based on her
analysis. That is, all secretors and all nonsecretors or 100% of the population
are potential semen sources based on the Fish analysis.

Fish provided completely different interpretations for the same data set
in Wardell and Adams, and in each case the interpretation was erroneous,
misleading, and the most damaging interpretation for the particular
defendant.

The Wright Case

In the Wright case, like the cases described above, all of the genetic
traits Fish detected in the victim’s vaginal swab were genetically compatible
with the victim herself. Fish never described her PGM findings from the
vaginal swab or from the victim, [ fl]l The ABO typing analysis from
the -vaginal swab revealed the ABO H antigen; and as
determined to be an ABO type O secretor. Since the H antigen and the PGM

typing traits from the-vaginal swab are all genetically compatible
with _herself, no genetic information concerning the semen source

. was developed by the Fish analysis.

11
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in Wright

At the preliminary hearing, Fish testified that both - and Paul
Wright were determined to be ABO type O secretors [HT 331, In 15; HT 331 In
19]. Fish testified that ABO inhibition testing of th aginal swab
revealed the presence of only H blood group substance [HT 312, In 21; HT 313
In 18]. She then testified that 40% of the population could have placed body

~fluids-on the -vaginal-swab [HT 314,-1n 22 through 315, In 12,

overruled objection omitted, emphasis added]. This testimony
misrepresented the significance of Fish’s findings because all of the H antigen
activity could simply have originated from the victim, herself:

Q. Miss Fish, did you conclude what percentage of the male

population could have placed their semen on the swab that
you examined fro

A. I could determine the percentage of the population that could
have--the percentage of the Black population, that could have
placed body fluids on that swab; I could not determine the
percentage of the male population, no.

Q. What percentage of the Black population?

A. Approximately forty percent.

Under cross-examination, Fish admitted that she could not determine
whether the H activity she detected was attributable to vaginal fluid or semen
on the swab [HT 321, In 19-24]. Fish also conceded that all non secretors
would be included as potential semen donors [HT 322-324]. On re-direct, Fish
re-affirmed her findings [HT 329, In 20-23, emphasis added]:

Q. And, the test of Paul Wright's blood, was that also consistent
with the blood typing of the semen on the swab?

A. That is correct.

On re-cross, Fish re-affirmed her testimony that O-secretors, and all
non secretors are included as potential semen donors [HT 330, In 12-19]:

12



j v’.->0ur File No. 00-765

Q. He's not excluded from a large group of the population, isn't
that correct? '

A. As ] testified, approximately forty percent of the population.

Q. That forty percent that you testified to, is that including the A
and B non secretors that we talked about?

A. That is correct.

As in Wardell and Ad/a;ﬁé,_ none of the pop'u“l‘gtig' n of pdtgntjél §‘em‘” en
donors can be excluded as a result of Fish's findings in this case. As she
admitted, all of the H blood group substance she detected from the vaginal
swab extract could be attributable to - Absent an objective
quantitative assessment of the semen concentration on the vaginal swab,
only blood group substances foreign to-an provide information
about the semen source. This is a fundamental principle in the forensic
examination of body fluid evidence. Although Fish opined there was a high
level of H blood group substance on the swab [HT 329, In 14], she had no way
of knowing whether that H substance originated from semen or vaginal fluid.
Therefore, attribution of some or any of the H substance to the semen was

pure speculation.

As we have previously discussed above, an objective quantitative
assessment of the semen concentration in the vaginal swab extract would
have entailed either a quantitative acid phosphatase assay or P30 titer
determination. From this quantitative data an estimate of the semen
concentration in the swab extract could have been estimated. This data would
then provide a scientific basis for determining whether or not the semen
concentrations were sufficiently high that one would be assured of detecting
antigens from the semen if the semen originated from a secretor. Absent this
information the Fish analysis was simply uninformative concerning the ABO
type and secretor status of the semen source; that is, the semen could

originate from any male.

Even if one assumes that the semen concentration from the |||l
vaginal swab was adequate, the Fish analysis could only demonstrate that the

13



.> | %ur File No. 00-765

semen originates from an O secretor or non secretor. O secretors occur in 40%
of the Black population and non secretors occur in 20% of all populations.
The total population of non excluded males would then be 60%; not the 40% -
alleged by Fish.

Fish made similar misrepresentation regarding her data from the
electrophoretic analysis results from the ﬂvaginal swab. Fish testified
that the enzymes types determined from-and the vaginal swab were
all the same type for each of four genetic systems [HT 314, In 2-8].3 Thus, as

‘with the ABO blood group test results, there was nothmg fdreign to_the_
female detected in her vaginal swab by the electrophoretic testing.
vaginal fluid could be the source of all of the electrophoretic results. No male
can be excluded as a possible semen source based on this analysis. However,
in contrast to the ABO test results, Fish refused to admit that -ould
be the source of all of the electrophoresis results [HT 322, In 14-20]:

Q. So, if a non-secretor with type A blood was responsible for the

semen that you found on the vaginal swab taken from
* you would come up with the same
results that you came up with when you tested the swab, isn't

that correct?

A. For the absorption inhibition, but not necessarily for the
enzyme typing.

This was reiterated later [HT 324, In 24 though HT 325, In 3]

Q. So, it is even possible that a type A or type B secretor could
have deposited this semen, and still come up with the results

that you came up with?

A. For the absorption inhibition test, but not for the enzyme.

When giving her final assessment as to what groups of the population
are included as potential semen donors in this case, Fish again included the

3 It is unclear from the Fish testimony exactly what elect oretic systems she employed and
what types she obtained for both Hand the vaginal swab. There are only
two electrophoretic systems that are relevant to the analysis of semen evidence. They are

PGM and Pep A.

14
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électrophoretic test results as being capable of providing discrimination [HT
329, In 4-6]:

Q. But, it is A non secretors, B non secretors, and A and B non
secretors, and O secretors?

A. Correct, plus the enzymes.

Not only did Fish fail to acknowledge that her electrophoresis typing
data could all be attributable tof I 28ina! fluid, her response of "not
necessarily for the enzyme typing" implied that the electrophoresis data is
attributable to semen. Even though Fish’s testimony implied that the
“electrophoretic data” originated from the semen source, she never defined
the “electrophoretic types” she obtained, nor did she provide the genotype
frequency data that would normally be employed to limit the population of
semen sources if, in fact, the “electrophoretic data” could be attributable to the

semen.
Testi in

The Fish trial testimony in Wright was as misleading as her testimony
at the preliminary hearing. She testified on direct as she did at the hearing
that and Wright were determined to be blood type O and secretors,
that she detected H blood group substance consistent with type O blood on the
vaginal swab, and that the electrophoresis results for the vaginal swab were
the same as nd Wright. Again the electrophoretic systems
subjected to test were never defined; nor were the types obtained from each
test described. However, when assigning statistical significance to her
findings, Fish again failed to reveal that she has no information regarding
potential semen sources and, therefore, 100% of the male population was
included as possible semen donors. At trial both Fish and the prosecutor
were careful not to assign population frequency statistics directly to the
analytical findings. Instead, the prosecutor asked [TT 848, In 24 through T849,

In 5]

Q. So, what percentage would be -- of the population would be O
secretors?

15
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A. For the black population?
Q. For the black population.

A. Excuse me. Type O secretors would be, approximately, 40
percent, type O secretors.

This misleading testimony left the impression that Fish could determine that
the semen source was an O secretor even though she had prev1ously testified
“~ that the semen could also originate from non secretors.’

On cross-examination in the trial, in direct contrast to her pre-trial
testimony, Fish refused to admit that all of the H blood group substance on
theﬂ vaginal swab could have originated from the victim [TT 854, In
7-11]:

Q. So, it is possible that the H activity that you observed on the

swab was attributable to the vaginal secretions of Jacqueline
Feemster, isn't that correct?

A. Part of it could have been, yes.

Fish did admit that she could not determine whether the H activity was
attributable to semen or to vaginal fluid [T855, In 5-11].

Contrary to her pre-trial testimony, defense counsel was able to get Fish
to admit that her 40% figure misrepresented the facts as presented [TT 858, In
18 through TT 859, In 1]:

Q. And 60 percent of the male black population, according to the
tests that you conducted, the absorption inhibition test, 60
percent of the male black population could -- could be

“‘responsible for the semen that you found on that swab, isn't

that correct?

A. Sixty percent of the black population, yes.

Fish again falsely included Wright in the group of O secretors and non
secretors that comprises 60% of the black population as potential semen

16
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donors when she had no information about the semen source from which to

narrow the population of potential donors from 100%.

Even after the judge had stricken Fish's testimony on direct about
electrophoresis testing in this case, Fish refused to abandon it [TT 857, In 7-12]:

'Q. If that -- if a type B non-secretor was responsible for the
semen on that swab, you would come up with the same
results that you testified to today in the absorption inhibition

test?

A. For the absorption inhibition test only, yes.

and again [TT 858, In 12-17]:

Q. Okay. And -- so -- Paul Wright would just be one personina
group of 60 per cent of the male black population based upon
your tests, isn't that correct?

A. In the black population, based only on the absorption
inhibition tests only.

The same pattern of overstating the strength of her test results is
repeated by Fish in Wardell & Reynolds, Adams, and Wright.

Other Examples

In Illinois v. McKinley, Fish declined to conduct conventional serology
testing of rape evidence. Her explanation for not conducting testing in this-
case was that there was potential for more than one semen source because the
victim had been subjected to a gang rape. In McKinley, Fish provided the
following testimony:

Q. Miss Fisch [sic], does the fact that a gang rape situation occurred with
more than one person affect your ability to perform any such tests?

A. Yes, it does.

17
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This testimony [TT 227] appears to contradict her tesfiniony in the Ollins
cases. Additional information should be obtained concerning laboratory
practices where there is the potential for multiple semen donors.

It is noteworthy that the same misrepresentation of conventional
serology findings exhibited by Fish in this review was also present in one of
the most famous false conviction cases in the history of Illinois, the case of
Illinois v. Gary Dotson. ABO typing information in Dotson, all of which was
~ attributable to the female, was attr1buted to Dotson at his trial by an Illinois

 State Police analyst Not only did the alleged victim recant her testlmony that
she was raped; ultimately, Dotson was exonerated by a DNA analysis
conducted in our laboratory. One can only conclude from this observation

that some thin_gs never change.

If you have questions concerning this review, please contact us.

Sincerely,

Alan XKeel, —
C 11#( alist

{ 1
Edward T. Blake, D.Crim.

18
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.serovlogist Pam Fish.

Again there would »= » gtipulation to. the

chein of -custody to tho<w exhibits was never broken to

" the time they were taken from the defendants Wardell

and Reynolds until the time they were handed over and

received by the serology unit of the Chicago crime

lab.-
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MR. GRZECA: So stipulated.

THE COURT: You may call your next witness if you
have one at this time.

MR. GRINBARG: Thank you, your Honor, we do.

MS. REYES: Your Honor, the People at this time

will be calling Ms. Pam Fish.

THE COURT: Ms. Pam Fish, please take the witness
stand. Please remain standing, face me, raise your

right hand to be sworn by the Clerk of the Court.

(Witness sworn.)
PAMELA FISH,
a witness called on behalf of the People, being
first duly sworn, was examinéd and testified as

fcllows:
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DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MS. REYES: - -
THE COURT: Ma'am, before you begin testifying I
ask you do not volunteef ahy information, only answer

the questions that were asked of you. If you don't

‘understand the qguestion or ycu do not know the answer
indicate. 1If an objection is raised with reference to .
ta“questicn'that'is'askeﬁjof you by any of the partiegs.

‘involved herein and 1 sustain that objectiocn you are

ﬁot to answer the gquestion. If you do not know .
whether or not you answer a particular guestion you
can look to me for guidance.

Speak up loud enough and clear enough so that
we can all hear you, okay. There is a microphone
embédded in the witness box directly if front of you.
If you move up a little closer it will probably be
easier to pick up your voice, okay.

THE WITNESS: Okay.
THE COURT: Thank you.

Ms. Reyes, your witness. You can commenée——

questioning and proceed at your will.
ME. REYES: Thank you, your Hcnor?

Q State your full name?

A My full mame is Pamela Ann Fish.

JWZ
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Q Ms. Fish, dp,you;havgran occupation?
2 Yes, I do.

Q ‘What 1s your occupatioen?

A I am a forensic scientist.

Q And whom are you employed by?

A I am employed by the Chicago Police . .
Pébafimeht} § N o _ o _

Q=,-.Aﬁd%hov long-have you worked for +thie Chicago.
Feiice Depa:tmeﬁt?

A I've worked there for approxiﬁately five
and~-a-half years now.

Q And where are you assigned?

A I am assigned to the Serclogy Unit of the

Crime Laboratory Division.

Q And how long have you been assigned to the
Serolegy Unit?

A I've been in serology for the five and-a-half
vears that I've been with the police department.

Q Please tell the ladies and gentlemen of the
Jury your educational background as well as any -
specialized training vou hsve in your field?

2 I have a Bachelor Degree in biology that I

received from Loyola University in 1980C. I also have

a2 Masters Degree also in biology which I received from
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Loyola University in 1982. I had nine months on. the

job specialize training in the field of serology%plus
I went to two different seminars in the field, both =
put on by the Midwestern Asscociation of Forensic

Scientist. I also attended the F.B.I. Acadeny in

Quantico, Virginia, in studying the electricforesis

and blood stain analyses of sekXual asszult dase.

Q - Can ‘you just teli the ladies and gentlemwen of -

the jury what is serology?

A Serology is the study of bodily fluids:; ve
are talking about things such as blood semen, saliva,
things of that nature.

Q And what are your duties at the Chicago crime
labk?

A My duties include preserving as well as
analyzing evidence for the presence of these body

fluids.

Q And can you tell the ladies and gentlemen of
the jury approximately how many times you'wve analyzed

fluids to determine whether or not they are bodilﬁ
fluid-z
A I have analyzed objects for bodily fluids

thousands of times.

Q And are you a member of any professional

JWIZ
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1 organizations?
2 - A: Yes, I em.
3 : Q And what 1s that, please? ~
4 A I am a member of the Midﬁest 2ssociation of
5 Forensic Scientists.
6 Q And have you ever qualified as an expert in
5 "éhe.courté i;iiiiinéiégiﬁw}éurwii;id?/-’ |
8| & Yes, [ have.
s - ' - Apprcximétely<h0ﬁwmany”times?n
10 A Approximately fifty times.
11 Q And have you ever testified as an expert in
12 the courts ¢f Illinois in your £f£ield?
13 A Yes, I have.
14 Q And approximately how many times?
15 A Approximately fifty times.
16 MS. REYES: Your Honor, at this time I would be
17 tendering her as an expert.
18 THE COURT: Defense counsel Nichols, any further
19 gquestions?
20 MR. NICHOLS: No question, -
21 THE COURT: Any, Grzeca?
22 MR. GRZECA: No, Judge.
23 THE COURT: Based upon the testimony of this
24 witness it is the opinion of this Court that this
JH1E
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witness can testify as an expert in forensic scientist
serclogy and accordingly>ﬁ; further questions are &
necessary she can. And the jury can accept her
testimony as aﬁ expert.

Ms. Reyeg, you may continue with the question
of this witness, thank you.

| :ﬁéﬁ RE&Eu{ 'Tﬁénkiibg;'&éur;ﬁgnort*

¢ o ¥s. Fish, please eXplain‘tcttﬁe_la&ieé-and
gentlémenfbf?thefjurk-the-nature'cf vour work?

A My work involves»looking at various physical
objects for the presence of any kinds of bodily fluid,
we're specifically looking for blood. And then we
find blood to determine if it's human blood. 2and if
it is human blood then you determine the various
types. What I mean by types is that each individuﬁl
blood sample has a specific ABO type and specific
enzymes and proteins that are found in it.

I also look for the presence of semen. If it
is semen then again to look for the various components
that make it up, the different ABO types that are -
present in semen, the various enzymes that are present
in semen. I do the same sort of work looking for

perspiration and saliva and other bedily fluids.

Q And what is the purpose of your analyses?

o
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A The purpose of the analysis is to be able to

determine the different types or different genetise

"characteristics of each of those stains so that you

‘can narrow it down into a percentage of the population

which could have contributed that stain to that

object.

0 And, -‘Ms. Fish, did you examine any evidence -

- submitted to you by the Chicago Pulice Department or

by the Collt founty Sheriff's.Depurtment in this rcase?

A Yes, I did.

MS. REYES: Your Honor, may the record reflect
that I'm showing People's Exhbit No. 7 to defense
counsels at this time for identification purposes.

THE COURT: Gentlemen, any objections?

MR. NICHOLS: No objection.

THE COURT: For use in questioning of this
witness.

MR. GRZECA: No, Judge.

THE COURT: Mr. Nichols?

MFP.. NICHOLS: No objection.

THE COURT: Accordingly there being no objections
you may apprcach the witness and question her with
regards to this exhibic.

MS. REYES: Thank you, your Honor.

[$)
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THE COURT: Thank you.

MS. REYES:  Q Ms. Fish, I'm going to show vou ..i%
what has been previously marked as People‘s Exhibit
No. 7 for identification.

Can you please take a look at that and tell

the ladies and gentlemen of the jury do you recognize

A Yes, I do recognize -it.

Q “And whht'do-ycﬁ'récdéhize'Péoﬁle“s'Exhibit
No. 7 for identification to be?

a This is a Vitullo evidence examination kit
which is a sexual assault examination kit that I
received on this case.

Q And how do you recognize it to be that?

A I recognize it because I actually put this
R.D. number and my initials on the box.

Q And did you perform any tests of the.contents
of People's Exhibit No. 7 for identification?

A Yes, I d4id.

Q And is People's Exzhibit No. 7 for

identification in substantially the same condition as

when -- &8s when you last saw it?
A Yes, it is.
o] NMow, again, Ms. Fish, directing your

JWd
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attention hack tc Pecple’s Exhibit;ﬂq.,?.forhf .
identification -- ) ' e e

Your Honor, may I approach the witness one
moere time, please?

THE COURT: Yes, you may.

"MS. RBEYES: ¢ Can you please explain to the

"ladies and gerntlemen of the jury what is contained - : -

"within*ﬁeople‘s'Exhibit,Nc;'7‘f0r'identification?

A - Within the exhibit we will find there is- what .
we call a microscope slide mailer which is just a
container which can heold a microscope-slide, it
protects it froem bresking.

Also contained within this is a cardboard
container that contains a swab. The swab was a
vaginal swab. And also in here are three manila
envelopes one labeled pubic hair, one labeled right
hand fingernaill scrapings and one labeled left hand
fingernail scrapings.

Q And what is contained in Feople's Exhibit
No. 7 for identification they contain specimens, isn't
that correct?

A That's correct.

Q And how are these specimens obtained?

j 2

These specimens are obtained from the victim

JW 2=
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“at a emergency room facility where the physician on

staff will take-a, what amounts to- a-long Q-tip swab. &
it .has has a long handle on it, and insert that swab
into the orifices of wherever the victim claims that
the sexzual assault occurred. Fer example, in this

case it is a vaginal swab. They will insert that swab

-into the area and will pick up some of the fluids that

-He»will_theﬁ*take'thejmicr@sa@pé,ﬁiiQQ agud - -
with that vaginal swab smear some of the contents that
were on this swab right onto this microscope slide.

He will then air dry the swab, air dry the swab and
put them in this kit and submit them for analyses into
the laborétory.

0 Now, did you perform any tests and/or
examinations on the specimens contained in People's

Exhibit No. 7 for identification?

Q What tests and/or examinations did you
initially perform on Feople's Exhibit No. 7 for
identification?

A My initial examination is to examine this
microscope slide for the presence of spermatozoa.

Q And, based on your --
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: " +What specific tests or examinations did you

‘fpérform to determine whether or not there was

spermatozoa?
A The specific test is to take this micfoséope
slide and stain it with a stain that is specific for

sperm and then put it underneath the microscope. And

‘underneath the microscope I will then scan the area

and looking if I see any spermatazaaﬂpréSant}"If-I-dé'
T will indicate that ifuis'positiVé‘éhd'go“on;

Q New, based on your éducation, training.
experience and on the results of the tests that you
performed do you have an opinion within a reasonable
degree of scientific certainty whether, on the sperm,
the specimen that you examined, whether or not there

was spermatozoa present?

A Yes, I do.
Q And what is that opinion?
A That there was spermatozoa present on that

vaginal smear.

o) Now, what is the next step in the analysis
process?

A The next step in the process is to take this
Q-tip swab which was used to make this smear and to

actually preserve this swab so that any further

%)
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‘testing can be done on the swab. To preserve it what. -

werdb is we Jjuct actually take the'Q—tip*poftion of s
the swab off and put two in a freezer so that when we
are submitted the blocd and saliva standards from the
individuals involved we can perform further analyses

on this swab.

é””"‘wa,'ih‘bfdérftb*béffofm'furfhe:finalyéés Y O

that swusb yov need-to receive blood and saliva

standards, is that correct? =

A That's correct.

Q And did you receive blood and saliva
standards in this case?

A Yes, I d4id.

MS. REYES: Your Honor, may the record reflect
that I'm showing defense counsels People's Exhibit 8-2A
and B.

THE COQURT: They have previously had an
opportunity to examine, they had no objections to have
them marked as reguested.

You may apprcach the witness and questioﬁ her
with reference to those two exhibits.

MS. REYEES: Thank you.

Q Now, Ms. Fish, I would ask you to look at

People's Exhibit 8-A and 8-B for identification and

JW2E
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tell the ladies and .gentlemen. of the jury if you

recognize People‘s Exhibit 8-A and 8-B? SRS

A Yes, I recognize both of these exhibits.

Q And what do vou recognize these exhibits to
be?

A This was the blood specimen that I was

submitted and this was the salivé”épecimethhat I-was . .|

T o7 M8 . REYES: Your Honor: ugain. for ;the record I'li

show defense counsels what was previously marked 9-A
been 10-A, B.

THE COURT: Any objection to having them marked as
reques;ed?

MR. NICHOLS: No objection.

THE COURT: Accordingly there will be no
objections from either side, that is either defense
attorneys.

Accordingly being marked beforehand you may
approach the witness with reference to these four
exhibits, is that correct?

MS. REYES: That's correct.

THE COURT: O©Okay, you may proceed.

MS. REYES: Thank you.

Q Now, Ms. Fish, I‘m going to show you what

JWZE
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~fras ‘been previously marked as People's Exhibit 9-A and

9-B for identification.

Do you recognize people's Exhibit ¢-A and

9~-B7?
A Yes, I do.
Q What do you recognize them to be?
A These?werekfﬁé'twd.viéf§ of“bi56§”£ﬁ;t5I was

“submitted from*Billy~WardeIIfanﬁﬂtherefis'the,éalivaw

- sumple thait I was subnmitted from>Billy wWardell.

Q Now, at this time I'm going to show you what
has been previously marked as People's Exhibit
No. 10-2 and 10-B for identification.

Do you recognize People's Exhibit 10-A and

10-B?
2 Yes, I do.
Q And what do you recognize People's Exhibit

190-A and 10-B to be?

A This is the two vials of blood, 10-B is the
two vials of blood that I was submitted from
Donald Reynolds and 10-A i=s the saliva sample thaé E-
was submitted from Donald Reynolds.

Q New, Ms. Fish, as to People's Exhibit
No. 10-A and 10-B can you tell the ladies and

gentlemen of the jury what tests you performed?
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A The first test that we go to perform is the .-
test on the blocd sample to determine the ABO bleod . . i
type of the sample that is present in the tube. .

Q Can you explain to the ladies and gentlemen
of the jury the ABO blood type, what that is?

A Okay. Every individual has -- is one of four

-different types; the four types being, you can be a
v Type A-idndividaal, & Type-B-individual; a Type O

cindividnal orsa Sype Ad-indiwidual, ovkay. - Evsiybody

is broken down into one of those four types.

To do that test it is a wvery simple test
where we put just a drop of the blood on a microscope
slide, put some commercially prepared antiserum that
is specifically prepared. We look for the red blood
cells for them to clump together or agglutinate. If
they agglutinate in the Type A commercially prepared
antiserum then we have Type A blood.u If they
agglutinate with the Type B then we have Type B.

Q Based on your education, training and
experience and the results of the tests that you

performed on People's Exhikit 8-A for identification

do you have an opinicon of reasonable scientific

certainly what the blood type of _is?

A Yes, I do.

JW2T
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Q What is her blood type? .- .

Shhe has blood .of Type A. - 75

s

Q Now, as to People's Exhibit 8-B for
identification did you perform any tests?

A Yes, I did.

Q And tell the ladies and gentlemen of the jury -

"what tests you performed?

© A - What -the. test.I performed on the saliva

sample is to confirm a test that we call a secreior

test or not. What a secretor is is an individual who
will secrete their ABO blood type or substance sim{lar
to their ABO blood type in body £luids such as in
their saliva, in their perspiration in their sehen.

things of that nature, okay.

We, from the blood, will be able to determine

a person's secretor’'s status or not, if they are a
secretor or if they are not a secretor. From a saliva
we go to confirm that. If we run a saliva sample, if
we-are able to determine the ABO blood type then we
know that they are a secretor and then we know théi;
blcod type.

0 Now, based on your education, training,
experience and the result of the tests that you

performed on both §-A and &-B do you have an opinion

JWa
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withil. a reasonable degree -of scientific certainty

whether or not _is---a secretor or

non-secretor?

A Yes, I do.

Q What is your opinion?

A That she is a Type A secretor. -

Q’. .N;w?fmé;iFish;.ﬁg'tﬁ féoﬁl;';“ﬁxhiﬁit'ﬁhﬁch%T

“identificatinn did you perform any tests wa People's,

Exhibit . 9«A for ideptification?

A Yes, I did.

Q Again, tell the ladies and gentlemen of the
jury what tests you performed?

A On the blood samples that were submitted from
Billy Wardell I went to determine first the ABO blood
type and then the secretor status. From the saliva
samples I went to confirm the secretor status of the
individual and again confirm the ABO blood type.

Q Now, based on your education, training and
experience and results of the tests that you performed
both on People's Exhibit 9-2 and ¢-B do you have én-_
opiniog within a reasonable degree of scientific

certainty what the blood tyvpe is of Billy Wardell?

A Yes, I do
Q And what is that blood type?

JW3
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A Billy Wardell is a Type B secretor.
Q “And you were able to detarmine whether he was4

secretor and non-secretor?

A Yes, I was.
Q And what is he?
aA He 1is a secretor.
9 Now, again, I %ould'iiké”YGQ-?b‘féil“tﬁé"'

ladies and gentlemén «f the Jjury what tests you

performed ou People's Exhibit 10-A and 10-B.

A From the samples that were submitted from
Donald Reynolds from the blood samples I again went to
do the ABO blood type and the secretor status of the
individual and agaih went to confirm that ABO blood
type and the secretor status from the saliva that was
submitted.

Q And, again, based on your education, training
and experience and the results of your tests do you
have an opilnion within a reasonaﬁle degree of
scientific éertainty the blood type ©of Donald Reynolds

and also whether he is a secretor or non-secretor?

A Yes, I do.

Q And what is that opinion, Ms. Fish?

A That Donald Reynolds is a Type O secretor.

Q Now, after you performed these tests what is

JWZ
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the next:analyses that you &id?
A The next analysis is to run the vaginal swab.m
to determire the blood types of the vaginal fluid and .

the seminal fluid that is”bresent on that swab?

Q And did you in fact do this?
A Yes, I do.
“Q -~ And . whatiparticular test or-what is the - -

procegs.cihat you used to. determine the fluid-on~the-

twab?

A The test is called an absorption inhibition
test. What it basically amounts to is taking a small
cutting, approximately three millimeter by three
millimeter cutting, from the vaginal swab and placing
it in a set of test tubes. We take it and put it in
exactly three test tubes. We put it in a test tube to
determine if it's a Type A, a test tube to determine
if it's a Type B and Type Q. The test tubes also take
into account the four test types.

We take a commercially prepared antiserunm,
place it in a swab and let it stay overnight in a’
refrigerator and absorb in the bodily fluids present
on the swab. And in the morning we come in, back in
and take off that commercially prepared antiserum and

run into a series of tests with no indicator test and

ok 3
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put it undeciaeath cﬁe microscope.

What we're*lOokiné for is the agglutination
of the red blcdod cells. If they agglutinéte in the 2
you're dealing with the Type A. If they agglutinate

in the B you're dealing with the Type B. If they

agglutinate in the O we say that there is H active and

‘when you say H activity we say that it is .indicative

of Tvpe U blood and- then we know we're deakiung with «
Type U dndividuai.

Q Now, based again on your education, training,
experience and on the results of the test that you
performed on the part of that swab do you have an
opinion within a reasonable degree of scientific

certainty what blocod types were found on that swab?

A Yes.
Q And what 1is that?
A WVhen I ran that swab I picked up both A and H

activity which is indicative of a Type A individual

and a Type O individual.

Q Now, after you performed this -- these tests
are there any other tests that you can perform?

A Yes, there are.

Q and what is the next test that you can

perform?

Jwda
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A - The next test I can performed is a procedurd

called electric fcresis where we actually lock Loi a

pProtein which is present in the blorda and is also -
present in‘semen, that protein being the PGM protein.

Q And did you attempt to perform this electric
foresis on the samples that you receivegd?

A Yes, Toatd. - 5 e

0+ . And -were.you abilie to poeirfovrm this
examination?

A I was not available able to get a result from
that examination.

Q And why is that?

A The reason I was not able to get a result
could be very varied. It could be due to the amount
of time between when the swab was taken and when I ran
it. It could be due to the amount of PGM activity of
the individuals involved. There are many reasons why
I cannot be able to pick up the enzyme activity.

Q And approximately how much time was it
between the time that you received the, initially the
kit was made and the time that the electro foresis
examinaction was attempted to be made?

A Well, if you can =--

0 Approximately?

.
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A Approximately 1 would say a year and-a-half,

‘almost two years.

Q Now, again, Ms. Fish, based on your
education, training, experience and on the results of

the tests that you performed on these exhibits do you

have an opinion within a reasonable degree of

scientific certainty whéther Billy Wardell would be © ~7 |

included invthe group that could hkave deposited semen -

i:n _ vagina?

A Yes, I do.
Q And what is that opinion?
A That he c¢ould not have'deposited the semen

that I found on that vaginal swab.

Q Now, based on your education, trainipg and
experience and on the results of the tests tha; you
performed do you have an opinion within a reasonable
degree of scientific certainty whether Donald Reynolds

could be included in the group that could have

deposited the semen in _vagina?

y-S Yes, I do.
Q And what is that opinion?
A That Donald Revnolds is included in the group

that could have deposited the semen on that swab.

MS. REYES: Judge, may I have a moment.
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THE COURT; vau may.

{Whereypon,

MS. REYES: Your Honor, :I have no further

questiones.

Would the Court like me to retrieve the

exhibits at this time?

THE COURT: . Yes, if you will, please.

MS. PEYES: “Thank you.

. THE COMRT: - Mr.

Nichoyis, you may cross exawnine

this witness at this time.

MR. NICHOLS: Thank you, Judge.

CROSS~EXAMINATION

BY MR. NICHOLS:

Q Ms. Fish,

it's nice to meet you I've spocken

to you many times before.

Now, you determined that my client has Type O

blood, is that correct?

A That's correct.

Q That's the most common type of blood, isn't
it? -

A That's correct.

Q Forty-three percent of the populatiocn has

that type of blood,

don't they?

A Actually in the black population it's a tad

a brief pause was had.j .

i
)
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Q . Now, you:rendered your opinion regarding theu
agglutination and secretor status on October the 13th,’
1987, didn’'t you?

A2 ~ That's correct.

Q And I immediately asked you for further

';esﬁé, dian;ﬁ i? - -
& - . Not to the-best of ny knowledge, 0o, sirv.
QL had.sérved,upon'you,an“oxderwupmn the

motion of the defendant that a test be performed as to

electro foresis, didn't I?

A No, sir, I received no such order.
Q You never received an order?
A For electric foresis to be performed and a

sample, no, sir, I did not.

Q In your supplementary report you indicated
that biochemical testing will be conducted on specific
request, didn't you?

A That's correct.

Q Now, I spoke with you regarding this
biochemical testing, didn't Iz

A No, sir, I do not recall ever speaking to
ycu, I'm sorry.

Q Well, didn't I speak to vou regarding the
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breakdown of the PM meter that made it impossible for

‘that test to be performed for some two or three &

months?

MS. REYES: I'm going to'bbject at this time.

THE COURT: Sustained. Let's have a sidebar on
this.

4 | ;Yfﬁ%ifciioﬁinb*bf%éééaiﬁgs were had
oudt of the“heariﬂg 5f the'jﬁfy;y

THE COURT: Mr. Nichols.

MR. NICHOLS: Yes, Judge.

THE COURT: This witness indicated that you had no
communications with her with reference to this matter.
It could very well be that you spoke to somebody else,
I don't know or somebody who identified themselves as
this particular witness.

What do you intend to go further with
reference to this question at this particular juncture
pertaining to the questions?

MR. NICHOLS: Judge, I would like to go'into that
matter with the possibility of someone else. o

MR. GRINBARG: As to someone else?

MR. NICHOLS: As to scmeone else regarding --

THE COURT: Mr. Nichols, yvou can't do that, you

know that.

cp
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MR . NICHOLS: Well, perhaps someone else
misrepresented themselves. EE a

THE COURT: I don't know what anybody did but she

'said that she never spoke to you. I don't know how

You can go any further with reference to that. I

‘believe that will take care of this particular matter,

MR.. HICHOLS: Judge, T just like to ask a-few-more.

L guestions along -those iineu.

THE COURT: How are you going to get by improper
questioning of this witness. She has indicated that
she has not spoke to you about this matter and what
have you.

What I believe.we'll do is we'll have an
in—qamera discussion with reference to this matter
outside of the presence of the jury to determine
whether or not the Jjury would be misinformed as toc any
further questioning in this particular light.

What I will do is I'll excuse the jury and
I'll allow you to ask questions outside of their
presence to determine whether or not any further
gquestioning in this wvain should be allowable.

Does the State have any objections to that?

MR. GRINBARG: No, your Honor.

JW2
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MS., REYES: No.

THE COURT: Qkay: ffine.
(The following proceedings were had
in the presence of the jury.)

THE COURT: Ladies and gentlémen of the jury. .

Ladies and gentlemen, I'm going to have a

,short_recess,-askﬁyopbto_beqzayto.Lgavgwpngwcpprtrcomu, _

and¢you”willgbe returne&ﬁbagk-here;verynshorﬁlyg.

- Thank you. -

(The following proceedings were had
out of the presence and hearing of
the jury.)

THE COURT: For'purpose of the record let the
record show that the jury is not present. The witness
who has previously been sworn under cath is still in
the witness stangd.

There were some questions raised regarding
certain matters that been asked of this witness. It
will be the opinion of this Court that before those
matters can be presented to the jury for their -
information Mr. Nichols can continue to gquestion with
this witness outside of the presence of the jury so

that this Court can make a determination whether or

not he can proceed with those questions.

Jy 4
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Mr. Nichols, go ahead.

ME. NICHOLS: Q |Now, did you receive an order
that biochemical festing be done on Exhibits K-2 and
W-1 and W ~- strike that, k-2 and W-17?

A I do not recall receiving such an order.

THE COURT: If you would have received such order
wﬁulduyou héée reﬁemﬁere&‘if?**f:'/ 5

" THE WITNESS: ' I would have remémbered it.
- .THE COURT: I know.you get a-lot of requests. -

THE WITNESS: We get tremendous amounts of
requests.

THE COURT: 1Is it a possible that you received it
and might have forgot it?

THE WITNESS: It is more of a possibility that my
supervisor feceived it.

THE COURT: Who is your supervisor?

THE WITNESS: Marianne Caporusso.

THE COURT: So that --

THE WITNESS: She takes care of all the reguests
that comes through the laboratory. ST

THE COURT: I understand. You don't get these
questions directly to you by attorneys?

THE WITHESS: No, sir.

THE COURT: Mr. Nichols.

2’\1 -
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MR. NICHOLS: Q Do you reczll whether you seen an.
order of this case?
A I do not recall seeing it.

0 Is there anything that would refresh your

-recollection?

A Seeing the order mayvbe.

‘% - MR, NICHOLS: Could I retrieve the or&ér fréh the ~ -~

court -£ile,  Judge?

.7 THE COURT: . Gu ahead, 'get it.. This ¥s outside of
the presence of the jury go ahead. The formality

would be required during the trial.

By the way, in-camera determination of
whether or not we c¢an proceed so that we don't get the
jury misconstrued whatris going on. ‘Just to advise
vou what is going on.

THE WITNESS: Thank you.

THE COURT: Mr. Nichols, I would like to advise
you that I have some parts of the file here that I
used during the trial but none of that covers this
order, okay.

MR. NICHOLS: Yes, Judge.

THE COURT: Thank you.

THE WITNESS: Would I be able to get a copy of my

file that is in the back room?
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THE COURT: Go ahead. Yes, ¢go ahead get it.

(Whereupén, a"brief pause was had;f
THE COURT: Okay. Mr. Nichols, go ahead.
MR. NICHOLS: Yes, Judge.

THE COURT: I would like to indicated for the

‘purpose of the record the witness requested permission '~

“to” get her file. - The Court granted her-to-do so just =~ #

£ur these paftiéular prcééédings nov.
“7'*Aﬁd,”Mrf NithélS?'fou'may'pfoceéd,ﬂékéy;
MR. NICHOLS: Yes.
THE COURT: Thank you.
You have that order that you say.

MR. NICHOLS: Yes, I do.

Judge, may I approach the witness?

THE COURT: Go ahead, this is not the trial. You
just proceed as though the matter were conducted in
chambers, okay.

MR. NICHOLS: @ I ask you to examine this order.
Have you ever seen that order?

A I can't say 1 have ever specifically seeﬁ -
that order. I've seen orders similar to that.

THE COURT: Does youy file reflect that any such
order being given to you?

THE WITNESS: No, sir, I do not.

’('\f -~
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THE COURT: If an order of that kind was issued to
your'supervisor would she necessarily turn that order
to you or advise you of that order?

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir, she would. She would

. either turn the order over to me or generally what she

does is write up a specific request and turn a copy.

THE COURT: But to your knowledgevafterrreviewing = .il=

your files and reviewing the order to vyour knowledge

- You have 'uever seen that order, is thdt your

statement?

THE WITNESS: That's correct, Judge.

THE COURT: Mr. Nichols, accordingly I'm going to
preclude you from gecing --

MR. NICHOLS: Well, Judge, I do have some further
questions.

THE COURT: Go ahead.

MR. NICHOLS: Q Now regarding the PM meter, was
the PM meter ever out of service?

A A lot; yes, sir.

Q And was it out of service in October,
November and December of 19877

A I am not exactly sure of the exact time but
there was a gocd two month period of time in '87, T

would say late '87 where we did not have an

\
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operational PM meter in the laboratory.

Q

that order had been served on your office you would

have received a copy of that order? -

THE
.MR.
kA-w

of that -

“s. v THE

when I asked her is that if she was given an order sghe
would have had it in her file or she would have

remembered it.

THE
THE

THE

order?
MR .
THE
THE
THE

me that'

need to

Neo, sir, I would moti-directly nreceive+a-copy .- -4

order. . . : T i

) )

Now, it is your testimeny that if that -- if &

[

COURT: No, I don't think she said that.

NICHOLS: ©Did you say that?

COURT: . I -believe Bey statement, Mr. Nichols,

Isn't that wh;t your statement is?
WITNESS: That is correct.

COURT: Okay, go ahead.

WITNESS: Could I ask one question.

Do you recall what the date was on that

GRZECA: I believe it was OQctober the 19th.
COURT: October the 19th. -
WITNESS: Of 1987, ves.

COURT: I have a question here. In front of

s dated 13 October 87 that says there is no

dc PGM typing.

in
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What does that mean?
THE WITNESS: That is the electric foresis typinga
That is the only thing that I have in my file

referring to the electric foresis of the sample.

THE COQURT: Do you know why such an order would be

in the file?

THE WITNESS: I spoke with the state's attorney-on’: . |™

the case,
CLHE COURT: And he-told you that it wasn't.

necessary.

But as far as you know you never received any

communications from any of the defense attorneys
representing either one of the defendants?

THE WITNESS: To the best of my knowledge, no,
sir, I don't reczall talking to any.

THE COURT: Okay, she doesn't remember.

MR. NICHOLS: Q Now, subsequent to October the
13th you did conduct an electric foresis; you did
attempt to conduct an electric foresis?

THE COURT: That's what she said on the witness
stand to the jury, I believe.

THE WITNESS: Nc, sir, I d4id not not before
Cctober the 13th.

MR. NICHOLS: Q I said after?

JW4
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i After I did.

Q After you noted 6n'Y6ur file that there was a
indication of the state's attorney that there was ho
need to perform a electric foresis test?

A Yes.

THE COURT: Why did you do it?

“FHE WITNESS: 1In January of this ‘year I ‘was dskéd “779°

to. -

‘"THE COURT: By whon.

THE WITNESS: By the State.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. NICHOLS: @ Judge, 1t appears that --

THE COURT: Don't smile because I don't want
somebody to come back later on and say the attorney
was smiling. I am not a psychosis.

MR. NICHOLS: Judge, I'm obviously going to have
to call Caporusso.

THE COURT: I don't want to mis-advise or you get
yourself involved in this situation with reference to
this matter. I don't know what you want to prove g&
it. She testified that she made the test and that it
was inconclusive and she said there are various

reasons why it could be in inconclusive.

MR. NICHOLS: Okay, if the jury can be called back
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I have a few more questions.
THE COURT: Oh, fine, sheriff bring the jury out.-

I don't want you to bring it up any more on- -
this matter as far as this witness is concerned, okay;
Do you understand, Mr. Nichols? . . _ - |

Acknowledge whether you do ‘or not. -

VME;'NICﬂbﬁS:..Jﬁ&de,;iﬁﬁﬁaéréﬁiﬁdi&ﬁaﬁ;Iéamfﬁotitcﬂ‘“
bring up the fact that I oirdered her -
THE COURT: Okay, thank you.
(The following proceedings were had
in the presence of the jury.)
THE COURT: For purpose of the record the jury has
again returned to the courtroom.

Accordingly, Mr. Nichols, you may resume your
questioning of this witness Ms. Fish who had
previously been sworn under oath. You may proceed,
sir.

MR. NICHOLS: Yes.

Q@ Now, Ms. Fish, on the 13th of October,

1987, you rendered your opinion, didn't you?
A Yes, sir.
Q That's regarding agglutination test, that is

the ABO and AB, is that correct?

a And a secretor status of individuals; yes,

]

o




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

23

24

sir.

Q And later that week you received an order
that no further testing be needed from the state's
atto;ney, didn't you?

MS. REYES: Objection, Judge.

THE COURT: Basis of your objection?

MS. REYESh véuscHomor,:can-we:have: s sidebar? . ¢

o

- THE COURT: . Yes.
{The following proceedings were had
out of the hearing of the jury.)

THE COURT: Go ahead.

MS. REYES: What I'm asking for, he has indicated
an order when we had an in camera. She said she had a
conversation with a state's attorney. Well, I think
that a proper foundation has to be made. Is he
talking about written order, is he talking about a
conversation. He knows that she indicated that it was
a conversation and that she wrote it down.

THE COURT: I want you to lay a proper foundation
indicating whether it was oral or written in nature
and with whom you spoke to.

MR. NICHOLS: Yes, I certainly will, Judge.

THE COURT: Whether it was with her or what have

you and you can also indicate the surrounding

JW &=




12

10

11

13

14

i5

16

17

18

19

;“) i)

circumstances, thank you.
{The following proceedings were had
in the presegce of the Jjury.)
THE COURT: Ladies and gentlemeﬁ, an objection was
raised by the state's attorney. I rule on the

objection. - Sustaining the objection- and allow the

'@defense;attbrnexftﬁarbstategthenquastipnim:i T E sy ch

Proceed.
MR, NICHOLS: Thank you, Judge.
Q DNow, did you have a conversation with
someone regarding whether any further testing should
be done, any further biochemical testing should be
done on or about October the 13th, 19877
A Yes, sir, I did.
Q Do you remember what date you had that
conversation?

A On the 13th of October of 1987 at 9:10 in the

morning.

Q Who did you have that conversation with?

A I had that conversation with A.S.A. Grinbarg.

Q And A.S.A. Grinbarg at that time told you
that no biochemical testing regarding -- strike that,

that no further biochemical testing would be needed in

this case, is that correct?

[¢}}
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A Specifically PGM typing is what we talked
about.
Q But you did perform that test-in January,

didn't you?
A That's correct.

Q Now, those tests are able to exclude and

"aren't they?

ford
o,
~a

A I do .not believe that's. appropriately tr
no, sir.

Q Well, in some cases it can include up to
one~-percent degree of certainty, can't it?

A Probably even better than that.

Q And you performed this test after the state's
attorney indicated that no further tests would be
needed?

A When I was again asked to do the test I
performed the test.

MR. NICHOLS: I have no further gquestions, Judge.

THE COURT: Mr. Grzeca.

CROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MR. GRZECA:
Q Just a couple of questions, Ms. Fish.

The tests you performed, the first test that

{‘.r- -
- .
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yqu performed on Jeannie Coscia showed that she was a
Type A, 1is that correct?

A That's correct.

Q You tested my client's blood, Billy Werdgdell,
he is Type B, i1s that correct?

A That's correct.

Q  And when you testéd:ghe§§§gggj:$§t§;§§.pyétfg

The first test you did and the final test

that you did excludes my client, right? .

A It excludes him from contributing the semen
on that wvaginal swab.
MR. GRZECA: Thank you, no further guestions.
THE COURT: Ms. Reyes.
REDIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MS.vREYES:
Q Ms. Eish, who regquested that the Vitullo Kit
be worked up?
A Can I refer to my notes, please?
THE COURT: Any problem?
MR. NICHOLS: No objecticen.
THE COURT: Okay, permission granted for her to
look at her notes to answer that question.
THE WITNESS: A The initisl request came on the

l14th of May and it was from a Detective O'Leary and
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Redmond.
MS. REYES: Q And who made the initial request
for the blood and saliva samples to be worked up with

that Vitullo?

A That reguest came from the State's Attorney's
Office.
Q- And’ do ydu recall from who in the State's’

Attorney's Office?

‘A - "From A.S.A. Grinbarg.
Q Now, in January you were told to perform the
the electro foresis test. Who did you receive that

request from in January of 1988, I believe it was?

A From the State's Attorney’'s Office, A.S.A.
Grinkarg.
Q And it was A.S.A. Grinbarg in January of 1988

who asked you to perform that test, is that correct?

A That's correct.

Q Now, calling your attention back to October
the 13th, 1987, when you had a conversation with
A.S.A. Grinbarg about the electro foresis did that
conversation include as to the chances for error on
that examination?

A It included & conversation about the fact

that the swab was bloody and the fact that 1if a bloody

JWE
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swab is run electro foretically you tend to get very
erroneous results because of the blood interferxring
with the test.

0 And isn't it also correct that you testified
on direct examination that the longer the swab sits
the more probability that the enzymes would be dead
and thereforé you could not receive results even if..
you make these tests, isn't that correct?

A That is correct. -

Q And these swabs and these samples and these
specimens were taken on May the 3rd, 1986, isn't that
correct?

A That's correct.

Q And you had this conversation with A.S.A.
Earl Grinbarg October of 1987, isn't that correct?

A That's correct.

MS. REYES: May I have a moment, Judge?

THE COURT: You may.

(Whereupon, a brief pause was had.)

MS. REYES: Q Now, Ms. Fish, did either Attorney
Nichols or Attorney Grzeca specifically request from
voeu that these tests be performed?

MR. GRZECA: Judge, I would object.

THE COQURT: Any objections?

k3
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MR . GRZECA: Judge, I wasn't involved in this
previous.

THE COURT: Well, what is your objection?

MR . GRZECA: .I would -- I'1ll withdreaw it.

THE COURT: You certainly have a right to objecﬁ

based on legal grounds.

MR. GRZECA: I'll:withdraw that,; Judge.:c-= s —w-tccle

THE COURT: Okay, what about you, Mr. ‘Nichels?
. MR. NICHOLS: I have no objections.
THE COURT: You may answer, ma'am, thank you.
THE WITNESS: A No, I never received such a
request.
MS. REYES: I have no further gquestions.
THE COURT: Mr., Nichols.
MR. NICHOLS: Yes, please, Judge.
RECROSS~-EXAMINATION
BY MR. NICHOLS:
0 Ms. Fish, you have a superior in Chicago
Police Department named Ms. Caporusso?
A She is my supervisocr.
Q And she is the one that conveys corders from
the Court or request and often conveys reqguests from

attornevs whether defense or state's attorneys to you,

isn't she?

JHE
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MR. GRINBARG: Judge, objection.

MS. REYES: Objection.

THE COURT: Basis.

MR. GRINBARG: Judge, relevancy.

THE COURT: I'm going to overrule the objection
and allow her to answer whether she does or does not. -

THE WITNESS: She ££ﬁé§°céft&in‘reﬁﬁéséé}11¥£ake,
requests directly from individuals when contacted.

MR.  NICHOLS: Q And she is the- one who processes -
orders that she receives that are received in the
Serology Department from the courts and orders further
work be done, isn't she?

A In some cases.

Q By the way, were you sick in October and
November of 1987 for a brief period of time?

MR. GRINBARG: Objection.

MS. REYES: Objection.

THE COURT: Sustain your objections. Relevance is
a matter before the Court.

MR. NICHOLS: Q¢ Was the PM meter broken during
the latter part of 19877

MR. GRINBARG: Objection, Judge.

THE COURT: Sustained.

MR. NICHOLS: I have no further questions.

JWS
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THE COURT: Mr. Grzeca?
MR. GRZECA: No gquestions, Judge.
THE COQURT: Any reason to recall this witness?
MS. REYES: I have no further questions,
your Honor.
MR. NICHOLS: Not that I can foresee now, Judge.
PHE COURT: You are excused, ma'am, thank vou for
coming in.
. THE WITHNESs: Thank you. ‘ o
{Witness excused.)
THE COURT: Ladies and gentlemen, I believe we've
reached a point whereby we will recess for lunch.
Accordingly you will be excused. We will recénvene
approximately ten minutes to 1:00. Please do not
discuss this case among yourselves.

Now, the time that I set is based upon you
being served and there is a dining room and what have
you and that you be able to be here. But we try to
start soon approximately at that particular time.

Accordingly you are hereby excused. Enijoy
your lunch, thank you. |

(The following proceedings were had

out of the presence and hearing of

the jury.)
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